<u>Minutes</u>

The Barbour County Board of Education met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, July 13, 2015 at the Board of Education Office, 45 School Street, Philippi, WV 26416.

Reginald Trefethen, Eric Ruf, Dana Stemple, David Everson, Joanne McConnell, Members, and Jeff Woofter, Secretary, were present. Also in attendance were: Teresa Childers, Michael Ferguson, Annette Hughart, Jeff Kittle, Brian Moats, April D. Paugh, Julie Scott, Connie Mundy, Allison Pugh.

Mr. Ruf called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

Mr. Ruf led the pledge to the flag.

Invocation by Mr. Ruf

A motion was made by Mr. Trefethen to approve the minutes of June 29, 2015 meetings as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Everson. After discussion the motion passed five (5) to zero (0).

The following delegations addressed the board:

Brian Moats – regarding BCEA Julie Scott – regarding BCAFT

Reports -

Facilities Report

Superintendents Recommendations -

- 1. Recommendation: Approve payment of bills for the period of June 24, 2015 through July 7, 2015 at a total expenditure of \$195,516.81.
- 2. Recommendation: Authorize the July 15, 2015 payroll and federal withholdings not to exceed the amount of \$1,000,000.00 to be released in accordance with Federal Law.
- 3. Recommendation: Authorize the payment of utility bills and copier bills due before next board meeting not to exceed \$150,000.00.
- 4. Recommendation: Approve the final total of the June 28, 2015 payroll check and federal withholdings in the amount of \$525,122.35.
- 5. Recommendation: Approve the final total of the July 15, 2015 summer payroll check and federal withholdings in the amount of \$282,507.90.
- 6. Recommendation: Approve the final total of the July 28, 2015 summer payroll check and federal withholdings in the amount of \$370,594.30.
- 7. Recommendation: Approve the final total of the August 15, 2015 summer payroll check and federal withholdings in the amount of \$282,508.64.
- 8. Recommendation: Approve the final total of the August 28, 2015 summer payroll check and federal withholdings in the amount of \$442,436.74.
- 9. Recommendation: Reject Mount Vernon Elementary Schools Sidewalk Project.
- 10. Recommendation: Adopt revised policy 6300, Personal Leave and Other Absences policy on third reading.

1.0 Purpose

1.1 The Barbour County Board of Education shall abide by regulations and laws regarding personal leave (sick leave) of employees established by the West Virginia State Legislature. The Board believes Personal Leave (sick leave) is an extremely important and valuable benefit that is to be used solely for the reasons and intentions as set forth in this policy.

1.2 Personal Leave (sick leave) should never be used indiscriminately as if it were a day of vacation. Any fraudulent request for, use of, or documentation of Personal Leave (sick leave) shall be grounds for dismissal of the employee(s).

2.0 Responsibility

- 2.1 It shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent and the administrative staff to enforce this policy.
- 2.2 Within the framework of applicable state statutes, utilization of personal leave shall be accomplished in accordance with good ethical practices with the **primary** consideration being the ultimate effect upon the instructional program.
- 2.3 At the beginning of the employment term, each full-time employee of the Barbour County Board of Education shall be entitled annually to one and one-half days personal leave (sick leave) for each employment month in the employee's employment term.
- 2.4 Unused leave shall be cumulative and shall be transferable within the State.
- 2.5 A change in job assignment during the school year shall in no way affect the employee's right or benefits.
- 2.6 Personal leave will be granted to full-time employees for personal illness, personal injury due to an accident, or life threatening illness of employee's spouse, parent(s), or children.
- 2.7 Illness or accident shall be defined as a personal condition that would render an employee physically or mentally unable to discharge his or her duties in normal capacity.
- 2.8 It shall further apply in case an employee is suffering from a communicable disease, which would be readily contracted by pupils or other personnel with whom he or she would come in contact.
- 2.9 All personnel are required to report their absence(s) per the procedures adopted for this purpose. When a physcian's statement is required, the medical statement shall include a reason/diagnosis, and dates specified for absence from and return to work. Barbour County Schools retains the right to request a second medical opinion at Board of Education expense on any absence using medical paid or unpaid leave.
- 2.10 At the discretion of their immediate supervisor, administrator, or building administrator, personnel shall be required to report their absence directly to their immediate supervisor, administrator, building administrator or their designee prior to the start of work on the day of absence.

Barbour County Schools' Administrative Guidelines for

PERSONAL LEAVE AND OTHER ABSENCES

1.0 Absence for being ill (Sick Leave)

- 1.1 Any portion of an absence, which is five (5) or more consecutive days in length and charged to Personal Leave (sick leave), shall require written certification from a licensed physician, which specifies the date seen by the physician and the inclusive dates of care for the illness or injury.
- 1.2 Consecutive days shall refer to regularly scheduled work days.
- 1.3 The Employee shall present the signed physician's statement to his/her immediate supervisor upon to returning to work. In extenuating circumstances, as determined by the superintendent, the employee shall be required to present the signed physician's statement prior to returning to work.
- 1.4 The immediate supervisor will promptly forward the physician's statement to the finance/payroll office where it will be required to support claims for Personal Leave (sick leave) pay.
- 1.5 The physician's statements shall be filed in the business office.
- 1.6 Upon review by an employee's immediate supervisor or at the request of the superintendent, verification for reason of absence maybe required for the tenth (10th) day and all subsequent days charged to personal leave (sick leave) within that school year. (July 1 through June 30.)
- 1.7 An employee who has exhausted all of his/her accrued personal leave (sick leave), personal use leaves (no cause days), and vacation (within the school year from July 1 through June 30) may request in writing a one day excused absence, without pay, from his/her immediate supervisor or may apply in writing for medical leave (see policy Unpaid Leave of Absences). The reason for absence must be

verified with a specific reason/diagnosis and time frame for treatment, and sent directly to the Superintendent of Schools for approval. The Board of Education reserves the right to get a second medical opinion at Board of Education expense on a doc absence when warranted.

- 1.8 Any unexcused absence or fraudulent use of an excused absence without pay, may lead to disciplinary action.
- 1.9 The employee's supervisor and/or Board have the right to require verification of reason(s) for any and all absence(s) regardless of the duration of the absence(s).
- 1.10 Failure on the part of an employee to comply with this policy shall be considered sufficient cause for voiding the claim of the Employee for Personal Leave (sick leave) payment; the employee may be subject to suspension.

2.0 Absence for Personal Use Leave (No Cause Days)

- 2.1 Employees who are eligible for personal leave benefits are authorized three (3) days of Personal Use Leave without regard to the cause for the absence. Such days will be subtracted from the personal leave allocation.
- 2.2 An employee may roll over unused Personal Use Leave from year to year not to exceed a total of five (5) days. No more than (5) Personal Use Leave Days can be used in a calendar year. Personal Use Leave days over and above five (5) days will roll over into an employee's sick leave balance and carry over to the next year as sick leave.
- 2.3 Personal Use Leave is authorized to permit employees to be absent from work for matters of a personal and private nature.
- 2.4 Personal Use Leave may not be taken on consecutive workdays unless authorized or approved by the employee's principal or immediate supervisor; Provided, however, that notice of such leave days shall be given to the employee's principal or immediate supervisor at least twenty-four hours in advance, except that in the case of sudden and unexpected circumstances, such notice shall be given as soon as reasonably practicable.

However, the use of such days may be denied if, at the time notice is given, either fifteen percent of the employees, or three employees, whichever is greater, under the supervision of the principal or immediate supervisor, have previously notified the principal or immediate supervisor of their intention to use the day for such leave:

Provided further, that such leave will not be used in connection with a concerted work stoppage or strike.

3.0 Absence for Religious Leave

- 3.1 Employees of Barbour County Schools may take two (2) days for recognized religious holidays. These days will be deducted from the total Personal Leave allocation earned and not from the three (3) Personal Use Leave days.
- 3.2 Religious holiday days do not accumulate, or roll over, from year to year.

4.0 Absence for Child Care Leave

- 4.1 Parent of newborn children or parent of newly arrived adoptive children shall be granted upon written request, by the Board of Education Child Care Leave for a period not to exceed one calendar year, for any one category of Child Care leave, upon written request for the purpose of pregnancy, childbirth, or adoptive or infant bonding.
- 4.2 Benefits related to such leave are determined by the specific leave category.
 - **4.2.1 Maternity Leave** Maternity leave shall be granted when an employee's attending physician certifies in writing that the pregnant employee is unable to work. Maternity leave shall be charged against the employee's total accumulated personal/sick leave. This leave may continue through the period of childbirth and convalescence through the exhaustion of all of the employees personal/sick leave. Benefits may not exceed the employee's accumulated personal/sick leave.
 - **4.2.2** Adoptive Parent Leave Upon the arrival of an adoptive child into the home of an adoptive parent employee, such employee shall be entitled to Adoptive Parent Leave if such employee is the primary caretaker of the adopted child (see definition of Primary Caretaker). This leave may be with pay through the exhaustion of his/her personal/sick leave, and such leave may be

regarded as a leave of absence for purposes of determining rights and benefits upon return to work. Benefits may not exceed employee's total accumulated personal/sick leave.

- 4.2.3 Primary Caretaker Leave A parent or adoptive parent who is responsible for attending to a majority of child care duties such as feeding, clothing, supervising, bathing, etc., shall for the purpose of this policy, be determined the primary caretaker and shall be entitled to Primary Caretaker Leave for a period of up to one calendar year upon written request, and may be with pay through the exhaustion of his/her personal/sick leave, and shall be regarded as a leave of absence for purposes of determining rights and benefits upon return to work.
- 4.2.4 Secondary Caretaker Leave Immediately following the birth of a child of a secondary caretaker or the arrival of an adoptive child into the home of a secondary caretaker employee, such employee shall be entitled to secondary caretaker leave for a period of five (5) consecutive employment days to be charged against the employee's accumulative personal/sick leave. Benefits may not exceed employee's total accumulated personal/sick leave. Secondary caretaker, for the purpose of this policy, shall be defined as a parent or adoptive parent who is not the primary caretaker.

5.0 Absence for Bereavement/Death in Family

- 5.1 Category 1- Five (5) days leave allowed in the following death in family cases, and deducted from the earned annual personal leave:
 - 1. Spouse 5. Children
 - 6. Father-in-law 2. Father
 - 3. Mother 7. Mother-in-law
 - 4. Son-in- law 8. Daughter-in-law
- 5.2 Category 2 Three (3) days leave allowed in the following death in family cases, and deducted from the earned annual personal leave:
 - 1. Brother
 - 4. Sister-in-Law 2. Sister
 - 5. Grandparents
 - 3. Brother-in-Law 6. Grandchildren
- **5.3 Category 3** One (1) day leave allowed in the following death in family cases, and deducted from the earned annual personal leave.
 - 1. Uncle
 - 2. Aunt
 - 3. Nephew
 - 4. Niece
 - 5. First Cousin
- 5.4 Category 4 Leave for other relationships and other extenuating circumstances as determined by appeal to the Superintendent's office.

The completion of an Employee Absence Report (Form #1) shall be the responsibility of the employee.

6.0 Calculation of Sick leave

6.1 Sick leave is calculated in the following manner:

Employment term	Days	Sick Leave	Personal Use Leave
200 Days X .075 =	15.00	12.00	3
203 Days X .075 =	15.00	12.00	3
205 Days X .075 =	15.25	12.25	3
210 Days X .075 =	15.75	12.75	3
215 Days X .075 =	16.00	13.00	3
220 Days X .075 =	16.50	13.50	3
230 Days X .075 =	17.25	14.25	3
235 Days X .075 =	17.50	14.50	3
240 Days X .075 =	18.00	15.00	3
247 Days X .075 =	18.50	15.50	3
261 Days X .075 =	19.50	16.50	3

Recommendation: Ratify the long-term suspension of a student from Philip Barbour High School 11. (BOE Expulsion Hearing #15-15) beginning June 5, 2015 through January 1, 2016.

- 12. Recommendation: Approve/Confirm requests for professional leave.
- 13. Recommendation: Accept resignation of Kathy Halstead as an ECAT/Kindergarten Aide/Transportation Aide at Belington Elementary School effective July 7, 2015.
- 14. Recommendation: Employ Kathy Prusa as a substitute teacher for the 2015-2016 school year.
- 15. Recommendation: Accept resignation of Penni Harris as a Math/Social Studies Instructor at Philippi Middle School effective July 6, 2015.
- 16. Recommendation: Accept resignation of Tonya Beltre as a Multi-Categorical Instructor at Philip Barbour High School effective July 7, 2015.
- 17. Recommendation: Employ the following personnel for the 2015-2016 school year. Employment is contingent upon certification and clearance of criminal convictions as defined in WV Codes §18-5-15c(d) and §15-2-24(d)

Jennifer Carpenter	Elementary Education Instructor, Philippi Elementary School
Misty Bolton	Secretary, Kasson Elementary/Middle School
	Multi-Categorical Instructor, Itinerant home-based at Philippi Elementary
	School
Erin Ward	Language Arts Instructor, Philippi Middle School
	Elementary Education Instructor, Belington Middle School
	Elementary Education Instructor, Belington Middle School
Michelle Bennett	Cook, Belington Middle School
	Head Teacher/Interventionist, Philippi Elementary School
Martin Kniley	Principal, Belington Middle School
Larry Poling	Bus Operator, Route 14

Recommendation: Employ the following personnel for the 2015-2016 school year. Employment is contingent upon certification and clearance of criminal convictions as defined in WV Codes §18-5-15c(d) and §15-2-24(d)

Extra Curricular AssignmentsRussell HumphreysAssistant Boys Basketball Coach, Philippi Middle SchoolJim SeatonVolunteer Cross Country Coach, Philippi Middle School

Recommendation: Employ the following personnel for the 2015-2016 school year. Employment is contingent upon certification and clearance of criminal convictions as defined in WV Codes §18-5-15c(d) and §15-2-24(d)

LIREC Reading G	<u>ant Program</u>	
Kayla Bouscher	Teacher	BES

- 20. Recommendation: Approve that the funds provided from the settlement on the roof at Philip Barbour High School be placed into the Permanent Improvement Fund.
- 21. Recommendation: Accept resignation of Justin Wood as Head Volleyball Coach at Kasson Elem/Middle School effective July 8, 2015.

A motion was made by Mrs. McConnell to approve agenda item 1-12 and item 20 as recommended. The motion was seconded by Mr. Everson. After discussion the motion passed five (5) to zero (0).

Mrs. McConnell made a motion to adjourn into executive session at 6:30 p.m. to discuss personnel. The motion was seconded by Mr. Stemple and passed five (5) to zero (0).

The board returned to open session at 7:50 p.m. (No votes or decisions were made in executive session).

A motion was made by Mr. Stemple to approve agenda items 13-19 and item 21 as recommended. The motion was seconded by Mr. Trefethen. After discussion the motion passed five (5) to zero (0).

The board acted upon or discussed the following items:

1. Other

Next board meeting:

July 27, 2015 meeting at 5:00 p.m. at Board of Education Office (Regular Session)

A motion was made by Mr. Everson, seconded by Mr. Stemple and passed five (5) to zero (0) to adjourn.

The meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m.

President

Secretary